
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not 
take place in a physical location 

Date: Thursday, 10th September, 2020
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

To receive declarations by Members and/ or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting). 

Members are advised however, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as any 
other interests. 

Members are reminded that they may not, by law, participate or vote in 
any discussion in a meeting on a matter in which they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

Members are advised that they should leave the room during consideration 
of any items of business in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 6th August 2020 1 - 8

4. Executive Forward Plan 9 - 14

5. Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

Public Document Pack



6. Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) representative 

7. Housing Needs Survey 15 - 26

8. Millom Hub - Verbal Update 

9. Task and Finish Group Updates 27 - 28

10. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 29 - 32

11. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Thursday 1st October 2020 at 2:00pm.  This will be a virtual meeting.

Membership: Councillors John Kane (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), James Date, 
Gemma Dinsdale, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, Ged McGrath, 
Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and Eileen Weir

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 6 AUGUST 2020

Present: Councillors John Kane, in the Chair; James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, 
Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, Ged McGrath, Sam Meteer, 
Sam Pollen and Eileen Weir

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Steven Brown (Director 
of Financial Resources), James Young (Scrutiny Officer), Rose Blaney (Electoral 
and Democratic Services Officer), Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer) 
and Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and Democratic Services Manager).

Also Present: Elected Mayor Mike Starkie, Mike Graham (Mayor’s Political 
Advisor), Gillian Butterworth (Performance and Risk Management Officer) and 
Steve Smith (Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager).

OSC93 Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies for absence received.

OSC94 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

There were no declarations of interests made.

OSC95 Minutes of the meeting held on 6th February 2020 

Councillor Meteer commented on the Strategic Nuclear Energy Board (SNEB) 
and the Nuclear Position Statements. In the previous meeting, it was noted that 
the position statements were going to SNEB to avoid duplication of work. Steve 
Smith, (Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager), highlighted the current 
position of the position statements and it was agreed that the Scrutiny Officer 
would facilitate the wish of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
members to bring the position statements to the next meeting by working with 
Senior Officers.

Councillor Meteer also noted that the minutes stated that Councillor Pollen 
would give a written report regarding STTUG, yet there was no written report. 
Councillor Pollen informed OSC that following that meeting, he was advised 
(which was clarified and confirmed by the Chief Executive) that it was not 
appropriate to have those minutes brought from a closed meeting with sensitive 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



and confidential information to a public forum. It will be noted and the minutes 
of the previous meeting will be updated to show that the initial request for a 
written report for STTUG is no longer viable and will continue to be a verbal 
update.

A request was also raised from Councillor Pollen regarding the invitation to 
meet with Sellafield which had been mentioned at the previous meeting, but 
had not been received and required an updated. The Scrutiny Officer agreed to 
follow up.

RESOLVED – That,

a) The minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2020 be signed by the 
Chair as a correct record, with two members abstaining from the vote as 
they were not present at the previous meeting, subject to;

 It being highlighted that the advice given is for the STTUG update to 
be given via a verbal update and not through a written report due 
to the sensitive nature of the meeting minutes.

b) Nuclear Position Statements be an agenda item at the next meeting.
c) The Scrutiny Officer provide an update to Councillor Pollen regarding the 

meeting with Sellafield.

[An adjournment was granted by the Chair at this point to allow officers time to 
fix the technical problems preventing members of the press and public from 
watching the live stream of the meeting.]

OSC96 Covid 19 Update and Recovery Plan 

Due to officer time constraints, Agenda Item 12 was moved forward to Agenda 
Item 4 so that the Chief Executive could give a presentation to the OSC 
regarding the Copeland Borough Council COVID 19 plan to reboot, re-energise 
and re-engineer Copeland rather than just recover. The presentation also 
included an update on how Copeland is going to work with the rest of Cumbria.

The Chair asked the Chief Executive to comment regarding the situation with the 
number of Doctors within the Borough, which at the start of the year noted that 
there was a low number, would be impacted via COVID. The Chief Executive 
noted that it had been difficult to recruit within that sector but, post COVID, the 
place based system might help with that from people moving out of the cities. It 
was also noted that people must be encouraged to use/access the NHS when in 

Page 2



need of medical assistance even though it may be more difficult in some parts of 
the Borough.

Councillor Dinsdale questioned, should there be another lockdown, if there 
would be an option to utilise Sellafield and the workforce with their skills as well 
as volunteers. The Chief Executive noted that there was a huge will from 
Sellafield to want to do more, but they were very mindful of the health of their 
workforce. The Chief Executive continued that as we now have more experience 
dealing with the virus, and the willingness to deploy resources more rapidly, the 
Council is now in a stronger positions to respond to a second wave of COVID-19 
infections than we were the first.

Councillor Pollen wanted to pass on his personal thanks to the Chief Executive 
and Council officers for all their hard work and support. Councillor Pollen 
wanted to also note that the aspiration to ensure that no one is left behind is 
commendable but must not be underestimated, as pre-COVID there were still 
numerous children and households that were reliant on foodbanks and were 
struggling. The Chief Executive noted that there is an incredibly dedicated team 
of officers at Copeland, all of whom did the Borough proud, who were 
redeployed willingly to wherever they were needed but agreed and endorsed 
Councillor Pollen’s point. There is a lot of work that still needs to be done, as 
there has always been, but there is now a renewed commitment and renewed 
focus with greater understanding of the issues within our community.
All councillors wanted to thank the Chief Executive for an update on an ever 
evolving situation with such a detailed presentation.

OSC97 Executive Forward Plan 

The Chair noted that they did not intend to go through the Forward Plan page by 
page and invited members to make comments or ask questions should they 
wish.

RESOLVED – That the Executive Forward Plan was noted.

OSC98 Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

The Chair noted that the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee are currently 
trialling a webpage solution to their current technical difficulties of holding face 
to face meetings. 

There have also been no meetings since the last OSC meeting, but there are two 
before the next meeting, when an update will be provided to OSC

Page 3



OSC99 Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 
representative 

STTUG have met a few times since the previous OSC meeting. Topics have 
includes; the implementation of the COVID Return to Work guidelines, reviewing 
best practice with neighbouring councils and input from Trade Unions. It is a 
continuous process. 

Councillor Pollen noted that he was given a concern regarding working from 
home and upon bringing it to the meeting, there was a lengthy discussion where 
they were informed by the Chief Executive and the HR Manager that all aspects 
of agile working, including legal and Health and Safety were paramount and put 
into place to protect staff. It was also noted that there has been an 
improvement over the years of the relationship between managers and staff 
and commended the HR Manager for all their hard work.

There was an update on Health and Safety, which included an update on the 
Health and Safety Committee which had been created last year. Courses and 
training for all members of staff were also available and a brief report was given 
on the Beacon, with the Council committed to improvement.

Devolution and post-COVID life were also discussed, along with mention of 
vacancies.

Councillor Pollen ended his update by noting that STTUG continues to be a 
positive vehicle for industrial relations with the Council, resolving issues and 
concerns, as well as sharing issues, information and opinions before it becomes 
a major issues. If there are any concerns councillors can contact either 
Councillor Pollen or the Chief Executive.

OSC100 Housing 

There were no housing updates available and, as this is a standing item, will be 
rolled over into the next meeting.

OSC101 OSC Annual Report 2019/20 

The Scrutiny Officer presented the 2019/2020 OSC Annual Report. They noted 
that the OSC work programme has been significantly impacted by the pandemic 
which is reflected in the report in Appendix A.

Councillor Pollen commented that he agreed with the Chair’s comments that 
OSC is crucial going forward as part of the recovery with this pandemic with a 

Page 4



major role to play. Councillor Pollen also commented on the need for 
partnership between OSC the Executive, noting that the change to Executive 
membership during the pandemic is a cause for concern.

RESOLVED: – That,

a) The Scrutiny Officer will make minor clerical amendments to the report,
b) OSC Annual Report 2019/20 be noted.

OSC102 Outside Bodies Report 2019/20 

The Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring 
Officer) was invited to present the report which provides analysis and overview 
of the Outside Bodies where there has been member representation and 
champions assigned to those bodies. The objective of the report is for members 
of OSC to acknowledge where members have been active in their outside bodies 
with a return rate of the feedback forms fifty-two percent higher than last year 
with forty percent feedback from twenty-five representatives and six member 
champions.

It was noted that there was one recommendation from Councillor Weir in her 
report to remove representation from the Maternity Ward Trust, but Councillor 
Weir noted that, upon further consideration, it would be best to keep 
representation within the Trust.

One of the main talking points to come out from further discussion regarding 
Outside Bodies was the need for further training, information and expectations 
regarding being a representative and a champion to help members feel 
comfortable in their roles. Possibly the creation of an induction course for 
representatives and champions, which could possibly include a job description.

RESOLVED: – That,

(a) The Outside Bodies annual review reports and any recommendations to 
Full Council on the detail provided be noted; and

(b) The Chair and Scrutiny Officer to look into further training and 
information regarding roles as representatives and champions.

Page 5



OSC103 2019/20 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 4 

The Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring 
Officer) was invited to present the report which presents an overview for the 
final quarter of 2019/20 progress and performance. The report is marked 
against twenty Key Deliverables which the council aims to achieve between 
2019/20, of which fourteen of those were completed, marking seventy percent 
completion. All other Key Deliverables were partially completed and making 
good progress prior to the evoking of the Councils Business Continuity Plan in 
response to the Covid19 pandemic. Eighty percent of KPIs met their target for 
the end of Quarter four and eighty-eight percent of comparable KPIs exceeded 
target and or improved or maintained performance compared to the same 
quarter last year.

RESOLVED: – That the performance against the Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan 
and KPIs and any actions taken to improve compliance with targets be noted.

OSC104 2019/20 Finance Report - Quarter 4 

The Director of Financial Resources was invited to present their report for the 
2019/20 provisional outturn budget monitoring report presented to the 
Executive on 21st July 2020. The report highlights the projected overspend for 
Quarter 3, as well as the outturn for Quarter 3, the changes in finance, the 
impact on general reserves and the capital outturn position.

Councillor Weir questioned the Director on the Beacon overspend and whether 
or not the deficit was the cause for members of staff no longer being employed 
by the Beacon. The Director confirmed that this was not the case and that the 
Beacon Director left the council of her own volition. 

Councillor Meteer asked the Director to clarify the impact on COVID for Quarter 
4, as this was before the introduction of Lockdown. The Director clarified and 
informed Councillor Meteer that the increase in the overspend from Quarter 3, 
and that the impact from COVID, was starting to be seen from the reduction of 
income from car parking and the increase of spending on IT to enable the 
council to work more remotely in preparation for the lockdown.

RESOLVED: – That the provisional outturn budget monitoring report to the 
Executive attached be noted.

Page 6



OSC105 Task and Finish Group Updates 

The Scrutiny Officer gave OSC a brief overview of the current Task and Finish 
groups and activities which were active before lockdown was initiated.

The Committee decided that the substantial change to the recycling service has 
operated since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the scope of the review 
has changed significantly due to impact of pandemic. The Chair of the Recycling 
Review Task and Finish Group is no longer part of OSC and the membership of 
the group needs to be refreshed. Due to these issues, it was recommended that 
the Review itself be overhauled and a new task and finish group be set up, with 
a new scope set, to review recycling as it is following COVID-19. 

Following conversation and discussion, it was decided that the Older People 
Task and Finish Group would need some further work. The Scrutiny Officer will 
speak to the social pre-scribers and report to OSC with their findings before the 
task and finish group would restart.

The decision was taken to defer restarting both task and finish groups until 
following the September OSC meeting when further information could be 
received allowing for groups to be scoped correctly.

RESOLVED – That the Scrutiny Officer would contact the relevant officers to 
collate the information required to restart the task and finish groups once 
possible.

OSC106 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

The Scrutiny Officer gave members an update on the work programme which 
had been severely impacted by COVID-19 and currently needs refreshed. 
Members will need to contact the Scrutiny Officer and the Chair know any items 
they believe need added to the work programme.

Members will also need to take into account the impact of COVID-19 and how 
Overview and Scrutiny works in light of that.

Councillor Pollen noted that we are in unprecedented times and that members 
need to prioritise what OSC focuses on in the upcoming months so that OSC can 
help the Council help communities.

The Scrutiny Officer highlighted the Executive Forward Plan that may contain 
items of interest for members and they then can be added to the Committee’s 
Work Programme.

Page 7



OSC107 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Thursday 10th September 2020 at 2pm via virtual meeting.

The Meeting closed at 3.57 pm 

Chair

Page 8



 
 

Executive 15 September 2020
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN 

 
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period. 
 
A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough. 
 
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred. 
 
Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 
Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt.
 
Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 
containing confidential or exempt information. 
 

  

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Local Plan Preferred 
Options

Council Special Council
8 September 2020

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1 

Executive  Executive
15 September 2020            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1

Executive Executive
15 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy

Executive Executive
15 September 2020 

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Whitehaven Future 
Burial Capacity

Executive Executive 
15 September 2020 

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

No Yes

Outside Bodies 
Annual Report

Council Council 
22 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

P
age 10



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Annual Scrutiny 
Report

Council Council 
22 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

No No

Copeland 
Community Fund 

Executive Executive 
6 October 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Beacon Update Executive  Executive 
6 October 2020   
        

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan 

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

Millom Hub Executive  OSC 
10 September 2020
Executive 
6 October 2020  

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Disposal of Land Executive Executive 
6 October 2020   

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes Yes

Council Climate and 
Environment Policy 

Council

Executive 
6 October 2020 
Council
15 December 2020

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes

P
age 11



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Climate Action Plan Executive Executive 
6 October 2020 

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes

Copeland Vision 
2040

Executive Executive 
6 October  
Council
15 December 2020

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2 

Executive  Executive
10 November 2020            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2

Executive Executive
10 November 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Constitution – 
Financial Regulations

Council Council
15 December 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Constitution 
Refresh/Update

Council Council
15 December 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

P
age 12



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Budget Consultation 
Outcome

Executive Executive
19 January 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Independent 
Remuneration Panel 
report

Council Council
February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Draft Budget
(incl Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief 
Policy, Discount and 
Premium Policy, Pay 
Policy Statement)

Council

Executive
19 January 2021

OSC
12 January 2021

Council 
9 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Budget 
(incl Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief 
Policy, Discount and 

Council Council (Prov)
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

P
age 13



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Premium Policy, Pay 
Policy Statement)

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3

Executive Executive
2 February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3 

Executive  Executive
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

 

P
age 14



Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 1st September 2020

LEAD OSC MEMBER: Cllr John Kane
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Andy Pratt
LEAD OFFICER: Amanda Starr, Strategic Housing and Inclusion Manager
REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Friend, Housing Strategy and Inclusion Officer

Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee? 
The Housing Needs Survey has now been completed and the key findings are presented 
to OSC for information prior to launch on 17th September 2020 at the Copeland Housing 
Partnership, following which the report will be made available to Members.

1.     BACKGROUND 

The Council has a statutory duty to assess housing need under the Housing Act 1985.  
The Housing Needs Survey is commissioned by Strategic Housing to assess current and 
projected future housing need across all tenure types and demographics.  This process 
complements the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), which supports the 
Local Plan, and the Private Sector Stock Condition Survey as well as informing Corporate 
Housing and Planning Policies. It is also used to inform planning application responses. 
The last survey was commissioned in 2011. 

In 2019 Strategic Housing commissioned Cobweb Consulting through a competitive 
tendering process to undertake the Housing Needs Survey for Copeland. Officers from 
the Strategic Housing and Planning departments met with the consultants in November 
2019 to agree the methodology and scope for the survey and subsequent report. 

Whilst the survey looks at overall housing need (market housing, social housing, private 
rented etc.), one area of focus for the survey and report was affordability – what the 
need and aspiration was for affordable housing across the various tenure types; choice 
available; the impact of stock condition and opportunities around community led 
housing, self-build and other non-standard approaches to affordable housing. 

The survey was required to draw out the needs of the older population – extra care 
housing, disabled adaptations and suitability of current housing – but also the housing 
needs of younger people and what they require to remain in the borough, which is 
important for overall growth. 

We also wanted to understand the reasons people had for moving in and out of the 
borough and the needs of new households forming as well as the impact of Sellafield 
and its supply chain on the housing market. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



Comprehensive postal surveys (with an option for online completion) were sent to a 
selected sample of households in January 2020 to gather information including their 
current housing situation, desire to move and future intentions, household composition, 
income, disabilities, housing condition and tenure. Further surveys were issued in March 
2020. 

A copy of the survey can be seen at Appendix A. 

2. SURVEY SAMPLE

The survey was sent out via post to a random sample of households in the following 
areas: 
Whitehaven – 1/3 of households
Cleator Moor, Egremont and Millom – 80% of households

100% sample for: 
Arlecdon & Rowrah; Beckermet; Bigrigg; Calderbridge; Cleator; Distington; Drigg & 
Holmrook; Frizington; Haverigg; Keekle; Kirkland & Ennerdale Bridge; Low Moresby & 
Howgate; Lowca; Moor Row; Moresby Parks; Parton; Sandwith; Seascale; St Bees; The 
Hill, The Green & Hallthwaites and Thornhill. 

Interviews were also conducted with stakeholders – Registered Providers, Health, 
Education, Lettings Agents, voluntary organisations and care home managers.

Response rates were closely monitored during the survey period and due to low returns 
from some areas it was decided that the survey would be re-issued in March 2020 to the 
remaining 1/3 of Whitehaven residents and 20% of Cleator Moor, Egremont and Millom 
as housing development is focused more around the main towns and sufficient data had 
been received from most of the smaller settlements. Due to COVID, returned surveys 
were quarantined by the consultants for 14 days which delayed provision of the final 
report. 

In total 2652 responses were received from a mailing of 24,963 (10.6% response rate). 

3.  FINDINGS

Whilst the survey results can only represent the views of those who responded, Cobweb 
Consulting confirm a statistical reliability to the findings and are 95% confident that 
based on the sample of 2,652 received the results for the whole of Copeland would be 
within +/- 1.8%. 

A summary of the main findings along with a walkthrough of a Parish summary will be 
presented to Members during OSC, but some headline findings were: 

Page 16



Of those that replied:

 80% of properties are owned, and almost half of those owned outright. 
 75% of people aged 16-34 own their own homes, reflecting relatively low 

process and high earnings.
 Dominant household size was 2 people (42%) followed by 1 person (29%)
 There were low levels of dissatisfaction with the ability of the property to meet 

needs (3%) and condition (4%)
 Where conditions were considered poor the main reasons were damp/mould 

issues (42%) and general repair (33%)
 There are very few one bed homes – half of all properties had 3 bedrooms with 2 

beds being the next popular. 
 Most tenures were spread fairly evenly but there are higher proportions of 

Housing Association tenants in Cleator Moor and Egremont and lower 
proportions of private renters in the Whitehaven Rural Housing Market sub-area.

 22% of respondents recorded a household member limited in their day to day 
activities by disability or long term illness (mostly in older groups)

 6% of the sample expected to need adaptations to their property in the next  5 
years

 22% of respondents thought they would move in the next 5 years (highest 
amongst younger groups)

 46% of newly forming households cannot afford to buy an averaged priced 
property without spending more than 33% of their gross income on a mortgage 
and a third cannot afford a lower quartile home – indicating an unmet need for 
affordable housing

 The older stock profile across Copeland (particularly in the private sector) means 
properties are difficult to adapt and do not lend themselves to wheelchair use. 

 There is a clear need for additional bungalows to buy and rent across the whole 
market, sheltered and extra care housing as well as for new developments to be 
built to ‘lifetime standards’ – catering for buyers and renters.

 There is no strong indication of a drift away from rural areas to urban ones. 
 The main market for Town Centre dwellings are young professionals, contractors 

and overseas students, who seek good quality rented accommodation. 

The final report includes response figures, conclusions and recommendations for each 
Parish/Town surveyed, which will especially valuable for responding to planning 
applications and informing our strategic priorities. 

4.     CONCLUSION 

It is clear from the report that though Copeland is one of the most affordable areas to 
live in the UK there is an unmet need for new modern affordable housing, especially for 
newly forming households, and the priority for the Council in addressing this should be 

Page 17



affordable rented housing in certain areas, but not across the whole district. The 
Housing Needs Survey aligns with the SHMA in terms of what the need is (around 77 per 
annum). 

Whilst shared ownership is not an appropriate offer for some people due to the 
relatively low house prices, the report again aligns with the SHMA in suggesting that 
help with deposits for first time buyers would be a more beneficial offer for those 
wanting to enter home ownership. 

In terms of older people’s housing needs there is again agreement between this survey, 
the stakeholders interviewed and the SHMA that a range of new, replacement 
accommodation is needed to meet the needs of Copeland’s ageing population, 
particularly bungalows and ground floor flats both for sale and rent. More extra care 
and sheltered accommodation is also needed, based on survey results (12% of 
respondents were interested in Extra Care Housing) and population and health 
forecasts.

The survey findings and stakeholder interviews indicate that there is a split between the 
‘have’s and ‘have-not’s in Copeland, and the needs of both these markets need to be 
taken into account when considering housing provision in the borough.  In addition, 
regeneration of the Town Centres and increasing job prospects to retain younger people 
is a key finding which complements the existing strategic direction.

5. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) 

5.1 Legal/Monitoring Officer Comments: Legal issues are addressed in paragraph 1 
of the report.

5.2 Section 151 Officer Comments: There are no financial implications for the 
Council arising from this report’

5.3 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Comments: 

Strategic Housing is about addressing the needs of the whole population and ensuring 
excluded and vulnerable residents can access the type of housing of the right quality 
and in the right area, to suit their needs. Particular focus on older people has been taken 
due to ageing population in the District.

Background Paper and Appendices:

Appendix 1: Survey example

Page 18



  COPELAND HOUSING NEEDS SURVEY
This survey is about housing in Copeland Borough. It should only take a few minutes to complete and is an 
opportunity to influence the way housing develops in the borough in future. Please complete and return it 
by the closing date of Friday 14th February 2020.

Sections 1 and 2 are for completion by all households. Section 3 is to be completed if the household 
wishes to move or if there will be a new household needing separate accommodation in the next five years.

To complete the questionnaire, please tick the boxes next to the answers you wish to give or write in the 
space provided. If you have any queries about the survey please contact Ros Grimes of Cobweb Consulting 
on 077661 77554 or Copeland Borough Council on 01946 598300.

PRIZE DRAW
All information you provide will be kept completely confidential and not used for any other purpose, but 
if you would like to enter the prize draw for a chance to win the 1st prize of £100 or two 2nd prizes of £50 

each please give your contact details below:
 

SECTION 1   Your housing situation and needs

Q1a Is your property ...?
Detached house 1 Care/nursing home 7

Semi detached house 2 Supported accommodation 8

Terraced or mews house 3 Farm 9

Bungalow 4 Caravan, mobile home or boat 10

Flat or apartment 5

Sheltered or retirement 
accommodation 6

Other (please specify)

11

Q1b How many bedrooms do you have? 

Q1c Is this your main residence or a second home used for leisure or work purposes?

Main residence 1 Second home – leisure/holidays 2 Second home - work 3

Q1d Do you ever use all or part of your home...

Yes No

For Airbnb (or similar)? 1 2

To provide lodgings for temporary workers or contractors? 1 2

Q2a Is the property ..?
Owned outright 1 Rented from a private landlord 6

Owned with a mortgage 2 Provided by your employer 7

A shared ownership home 3

Rented from a Housing Association 4

Other (please explain)
8

Q2b (Only for those renting from a private landlord), which of these would apply to your household?
My household has sole use of its own kitchen and bathroom 1

 My household has its own kitchen and bathroom and we have chosen to live together 
(flat/house share) 2

 My household shares a kitchen and bathroom with another household we/I have not 
chosen to live with 3

Name:                                       Address:                                        Phone or e-mail:

Page 19



Q3a How many people live in your home?

Q3b How many of them are in each of these age groups?
Under 18 18 - 24 25 - 65 Over 65

Q4 Which of these options best describes the composition of your household?
(Dependent children are those up to the age of 16 years or 16 – 18 in full time education)
Single adult 1

One adult with one or more dependent children  2

Two adults who are married, in a civil partnership or living as a couple,  with no children 3

Two adults who are married, in a civil partnership or living as a couple, with 1 or more 
dependent children 4

Other situation with dependent children 5

Parent(s) with grown-up child(ren) at home and no dependent children 6

Other situation without dependent children (eg unrelated adults sharing) 7

Q5a How long have you lived in this property? 
Q5b And how long have you lived in Copeland Borough?

Property Borough
Less than 2 years 1 1

2 – 5 years 2 2

6 – 10 years 3 3

Longer than 10 years 4 4

If you have not moved within the last five 
years, please go on to question 9, otherwise 
answer questions 6, 7 and 8 if they apply.

Q6 If you have moved within the last five years, what was the tenure of your previous property?
Owned outright 1 Rented from a private landlord 6

Owned with a mortgage 2 Provided by your employer 7

A shared ownership home 3 Lived at home with family 8

Rented from a Housing Association 4

Rented from a Council 5

Other (please explain)
9

Q7a If you have lived in the area for five years or less, what attracted you to move into the area?

Q7b If you have lived in the area for five years or less, from where did you move into the area?

Q8a If you have moved WITHIN the Copeland area in the last five years, what were your reasons for 
moving?

Q8b If you have moved WITHIN Copeland in the last five years what part of the Borough did you live in 
before you moved to your present address?

Q9a How would you rate the condition of your current property?
Very good Good Fair Poor Very poor Don’t know

1 2 3 4 5 6

Q9b If you think it is in poor or very poor condition please explain why.

Q10a  Overall, how good or poor is the property at meeting the needs of your household?
Very good Good Fair Poor Very poor Don’t know

1 2 3 4 5 6

Q10b  If you think it is poor or very poor  at meeting your needs please explain why.

Page 20



Q11a If you live in a rented property, how would you rate the way that the property is managed and  
maintained?
Very good Good Fair Poor Very poor Don’t know

1 2 3 4 5 6

Q11b  If you think management and maintenance of your property is poor or very poor please explain 
why.

Q12 If your property is rented or if you are paying a mortgage what is the monthly payment? (If a shared 
ownership home please give the total payment for rent and mortgage)

Less than £300 1 £801 - £900 7

£300 - £400 2 £901 - £1,000 8

£401 - £500 3 £1,001 - £1,200 9

£501 - £600 4 £1,201 - £1,400 10

£601 - £700 5 More than £1,400 11

£701 - £800 6

Q13a Looking ahead, how likely is it that your household will move to another property within the next 
five years?
Very likely 1

Fairly likely 2

Unsure 3

Not very likely 4

Most unlikely 5

If you are likely to move please 
answer Question 13b, 
otherwise go on to Question 
14a

  

Q13b What are your reasons for wanting to move? Please explain as fully as possible

Q14a  Is there anyone within your current household who will need or want to move into separate 
accommodation and form a new household in the next five years?
Yes 1 Please answer Q14b 
No 2 Please go to Q15

Q14b Why will this household be seeking separate accommodation? Please explain as fully as possible

Q14c Are there any barriers which might prevent them from moving out? 
Yes 1 No 2

Q14d What are the barriers, please explain? Please explain as fully as possible

SECTION 2   About yourself and your household

Now please give us a little information about yourself, so we can check that we have heard from a good 
cross section of people who live in Copeland Borough
We do not need names and addresses but please give us 
your postcode so we can check that all parts
of Copeland are represented in this survey.

QQ15 Are you ..? Q16 Into which of these age groups do you and your 
spouse/partner (if you have one) fall?

Male 1 You Spouse/partner
Female 2 16 – 24 1 1

Other 3 25 – 34 2 2

Prefer not to say 4 35 - 49 3 3

50 - 64 4 4

Postcode: 

Page 21



65 – 74 5 5

75 – 84 6 6

85 or over 7 7

Q17 Which of these best describes the ethnic groups to which you and your spouse/ partner (if you have 
one) belong?
White

You
Spouse/
partner You

Spouse/
partner

English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/ British 1 1

Bangladeshi
11 11

Irish 2 2 Chinese 12 12

Gypsy or Irish Traveller 3 3 Any other Asian background 13 13

Any other White background 4 4 Black/Black British
Mixed/multiple ethnic group Black Caribbean 14 14

Mixed White & Black Caribbean 5 5 Black African 15 15

Mixed White & Black African 6 6 Any other Black background 16 16

Mixed White & Asian 7 7 Any other ethnic group
Any other mixed/multiple ethnic 
background 8 8

Arab
17 17

Asian/Asian British Any other ethnic group 18 18

Indian 9 9 Prefer not to answer 19 19

Pakistani 10 10

Q18 What is your employment status? And that of your spouse/partner (if you have one)
You Spouse/partner

Full-time work (30 hours or more per week) 1 1

Part-time work (less than 30 hours per week) 2 2

Government Training/Apprenticeship 3 3

Registered unemployed and looking for work 4 4

Retired 5 5

Looking after home or family full time and not seeking work 6 6

Student/full time education 7 7

Unable to work due to long-term sickness/disability 8 8

None of the above 9 9

Prefer not to answer 10 10

Q19a Which of these best describes the nature of the occupations of those who are working? 
You Spouse/partner

Manager, director, senior official 1 1

Professional occupations 2 2

Associate professional and technical 3 3

Administrative and secretarial 4 4

Skilled trades 5 5

Caring, leisure and other service occupations 6 6

Sales and  customer service 7 7

Process, plant and machine operatives 8 8

Elementary occupations (such as labouring, cleaning, security or casual 
work 9 9

Prefer not to answer 10 10

No spouse/partner or he/she does not work 11

Q19b  And  in which sector do you/they work?

You
Spouse/
partner You

Spouse/
partner

Education 1 1 Health or Social care 9 9

Agriculture 2 2 Transport 10 10

Manufacturing 3 3 IT and Communication 11 11Page 22



Construction
4 4

Hospitality (hotels and 
restaurants) 12 12

Sellafield Ltd and organisations 
that supply to or support 
Sellafield’s operations 5 5

Other public sector

13 13

Retail 6 6 Other private sector 14 14

Utilities 7 7 Prefer not to say 15 15

Recreation, leisure and tourism
8 8

No spouse/partner or he/she 
does not work 16

Q20 Is there anyone in your household whose day to day activities are limited because of a health 
problem or disability which has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months?
Yes 1 No 2

Q21a Have you had any adaptations to your home to increase mobility or accessibility and 

Q21b Do you think you will need to in the next five years?
Have had adaptations Will need adaptations

Yes 1 1

No 2 2

Unsure 3

Q22 Are any of the following needed to address mobility and accessibility needs in the household? 

Already 
have

Need No 
need

  Level access to front door 1 2 3

  Level floors within the home ie flat or bungalow with no stairs 1 2 3

  Accessible toilet and/or washing facilities 1 2 3

  A level access shower 1 2 3

  Handrails inside or outside 1 2 3

Q23 Does anyone in your household use a wheelchair

Yes – outside the home 1

Yes – inside the home 2

No 3

Q24  Does anyone in your household receive any of these benefits? Please tick all that apply
Income Support 1 Attendance Allowance 10

Housing Benefit 2 Carers Allowance 11

Local Housing Allowance 3 Other disability-related benefits 12

Council Tax Support  / Reduction 4 Child Benefit 13

State Pension 5 Child Tax Credit  14

Pension Credit 6 Working Tax Credit 15

Jobseekers Allowance 7 Universal Credit 16

Employment and Support Allowance 8 None of these 17

Disabled Living Allowance / Personal  
Independence Payment   9

Q25 What is your household's total income before tax? This should include income from employment, 
savings, shares and benefits (excluding Housing Benefit and Disability Living Allowance). If you can give 
an exact figure please do so. If not please indicate which of the following bands would apply.

Exact figure £                              per

Week Month Week MonthPage 23



A.  Under £125 Under £500 1 G.  £751-£875 £3,001-£3,500 7

B.  £126-£250 £501-£1,000 2 H.  £876-£1,000 £3,501-£4,000 8

C.  £251-£375 £1,001-£1,500 3 I.  £1,001-£1,250 £4,001-£5,000 9

D.  £376-£500 £1,501-£2,000 4 J.  £1,251-£1,875 £5,001-£7,500 10

E.  £501-£625 £2,001-£2,500 5 K.  Above £1,875 Above £7,500 11

F.  £626-£750 £2,501-£3,000
6

Prefer not to 
say/Don't know 12

IMPORTANT
If the current household wishes to move, or there is someone who wants to move to form a new 
household, please answer the questions in Section 3. There is space to tell us about two possible 
households moving. Even if there are barriers which may prevent a new household forming, 
please complete the questions as it is important to the Council’s objectives to know what the 
requirements are/would be.

SECTION 3  Household moves Household 
         1

Household 
         2

Q26 What household is planning to move?  Is this...
The current household moving? 1 1

Someone or a group of people moving out to form a new household? 2 2

Household 
         1

Household 
         2

Q27 How many people will be in the household requiring accommodation?

Q28 And how many will there be of each of the following? Please put in numbers
Adult couples (number of couples,  not number of adults)
Single adults 16 or over
Boys 10 – 15
Girls 10 – 15
Boys 0 - 9
Girls 0 - 9
Q29 What type of household will it be?
Single adult 1 1

One adult with one or more dependent children  2 2

Two adults who are married, in a civil partnership or living as a couple, no children   3 3

Two adults who are married, in a civil partnership or living as a couple, with 1 or 
more dependent children 4 4

Other situation with dependent children 5 5

Parent(s) with grown-up child(ren) at home and no dependent children 6 6

Other situation without dependent children (eg unrelated adults sharing) 7 7

Q30 What will be the minimum number of bedrooms required?

Q31 What type of property would the household prefer to have? 
Detached house 1 1

Semi-detached house 2 2

Terraced or mews house 3 3

Bungalow 4 4

Flat or apartment 5 5

Sheltered or retirement accommodation 6 6

Nursing or care home 7 7

Supported accommodation 8 8

Caravan, mobile home or boat 9 9

Other (please specify) 10 10Page 24



Q32 What sort of tenure would they prefer to have?
Buy a property outright 1 1

Buy with a mortgage 2 2

Have a shared ownership home 3 3

Rent from a Housing Association 4 4

Rent from a Council 5 5

Rent from a private landlord 6 6

Obtain accommodation linked to a job 7 7

Other (please specify) 8 8

Q33a In what area would the household prefer to live?
Remain in Copeland Borough 1 1

Move out of the Borough 2 2

Q33b If thinking of moving out of the Borough what, if anything, would encourage them to stay?

Q34 Is the household currently registered with Cumbria Choice?
Yes 1 1

No 2 2

Don’t know 3 3

Q35 If the household is hoping to buy a property, what is the maximum they could 
afford?

Household 
         1

Household 
         2

Up to £100,000 1 1

From £100,001 - £150,000 2 2

From £150,001 - £200,000 3 3

From £200,001 - £250,000 4 4

From £250,001 - £300,000 5 5

From £300,001 - £400,000 6 6

From £400,001 - £500,000 7 7

Over £500,000 8 8

Don’t know 9 9

Q36 If they are hoping to rent, what is the maximum amount of rent they could afford each month?

Less than £300 per month 1 1

£300 - £400 per month 2 2

£401 - £500 per month 3 3

£501 - £600 per month 4 4

£601 - £700 per month 5 5

£701 - £800 per month 6 6

£801 - £1000 per month 7 7

£1001 - £1200 per month 8 8

£1201 - £1400 per month 9 9

More than £1400 per month 10 10

Don’t know 11 11

Q37 Into which of these bands will the gross income (before tax and NI, etc) for the household fall? That is, 
the total income from employment and benefits before any deductions but excluding Housing Benefit.

Per month Per year HH 1 HH2 Per month Per year HH 1 HH2
Under £800 Under £9,600 1 1 £3,200 - £3,599 £38,400 - £43,199 8 8

£801-£1,199 £9,600 - £14,399 2 2 £3,600 - £3,999 £43,200 - £47,999 9 9

£1,200-£1,599 £14,400 - £19,199 3 3 £4,000 - £4,399 £48,000 - £52,799 10 10

£1,600-£1,999 £19,200 - £23,999 4 4 £4,400 - £6,249 £52,800 - £74,999 11 11
Page 25



£2,000-£2,399 £24,000 - £28,799 5 5 £6,250 - £8,332 £75,000 - £99,999 12 12

£2,400-£2,799 £28,800 - £33,599 6 6 £8,333 or over £100,000 or over 13 13

£2,800 - £3,199 £33,600 - £38,399 7 7 Don’t know Don’t know 14 14

Q38  Finally, do you think that either the current household or a new household would be interested 
in any of the following:

Yes Maybe No
Self build projects – schemes where people work together to build their own homes
 to own or rent and are often supported by private or community organisations 1 2 3

Co-living/co-housing developments – a form of owned or rented housing where 
residents have their own homes but also share living space and a set of interests, 
values or intentions 1 2 3

Community led housing – small schemes where local people own and manage 
genuinely affordable homes with support and voluntary input 1 2 3

Lifetime Homes – an approach to design which makes homes more easily adaptable
 for lifetime use by a wider range of families 1 2 3

Extra Care Housing – specialist housing for older people, similar to sheltered housing 
but also offering help with personal care and household chores 1 2 3

Thank you very much for completing the questionnaire. Please return it to us in the Freepost envelope 
provided. Cobweb Consulting   FREEPOST RTKA-YTZU-AKXA  2 Kemerton Road London SE5 9AP

Page 26



 

Page 1 of 1

Task and Finish Group Monitoring

Task and Finish 
Group

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group

Progress Next Step Estimated 
Completion 
Date

Recycling Review TBC Update on Recycling 
service given to 
group.

Task and Finish Group to be restarted 
following September meeting of OSC.

N/A

Older People Cllr Linda 
Jones-Bulman

First meeting held. 
Met with Copeland 
Older People’s Forum 
and Social 
Prescribing Officers 
to next steps.

Scrutiny Officer to speak to Social 
Prescribers and ascertain if group is 
possible to proceed.

N/AP
age 27

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Standing Items

Item Corporate Plan Priority Purpose Lead Officer

Executive Forward Plan All To identify any forthcoming 
items which the Committee 
may consider.

Chief Executive

Update from Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee

Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities

To receive an update from 
the Cumbria Health and 
Scrutiny Committee from 
the nominated Copeland 
representative.

Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Update from the Single 
Table Trade Union Group 
(STTUG) Representative

A Commercial Council To receive an update from 
the Single Table Trade Union 
Group (STTUG) from the 
nominated Overview and 
Scrutiny representative. 

Human Resources Manager

Housing A Place for Growth and 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities

To receive any reports from 
the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager.

Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager

Task and Finish Group 
Updates

All To update the Committee on 
the progress of Task and 
Finish Groups.

Scrutiny Officer

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work 
Programme

A Commercial Council For the Committee to plan 
their work for the municipal 
year.

Scrutiny Officer

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 10



Agenda Items for Committee Meetings

Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter one of 2020/21

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

1st October 
2020

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter one of 
2020/21

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2020/21

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

26th 
November 
2020

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter two of 
2020/21

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

P
age 30



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

17th 
December 
2020
12th January 
2021
(Special)

Draft Budget All The Mayor will present their 
Draft Budget proposals for 
the year 2021/2022

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

4th February 
2021

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2020/21

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

1st April 
2021

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2020/21

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Items to be programmed into the OSC Work Programme 2020/21

 Climate Action Plan
 Millom Hub

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 6th August 2020
	4 Executive Forward Plan
	7 Housing Needs Survey
	Copeland Housing Needs Survey final

	9 Task and Finish Group Updates
	10 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

